
 1 

  GUNNISON SUSTAINABLE TOURISM AND OUTDOOR TOURISM COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

December 15, 2022 
 

The December 15, 2022 Gunnison Sustainable Tourism and Outdoor Tourism Committee (STORC) 
meeting was conducted in person and by Zoom virtual online meeting, Gunnison, CO, 81230. 
 
 
Committee Members Present: 
 
Jake Jones, Chair, Crested Butte Land Trust 
Kimberly Schappert, Vice Chair, At-Large 
Community Member 
Dave Ochs, At Large Member  

Tim Kugler, At-Large Member 
Derek Nehrenberg, MetRec 
John Norton, Gunnison Crested Butte Tourism  

Matt Reed, High Country Conservation Advocates Ian Billick, Town of Crested Butte                                                       
Roman Kolodziej, Town of Mount Crested Butte  James Lovelace, BLM 
Emily Nutgrass, USFS     Scott Borden, WCU 
Jonathan Houck, BOCC     Mallory Logan, City of Gunnison 
Steve Guerrieri, Stockgrowers    Brandon Diamond, CPW 
 
 
Others in Audience:

Morgan Anderson 
Sue Uerling 
Joey Carpenter 
Paul Rivera 
Emily Nutgrass     
  
  
Staff: 
Joe Lavorini, Gunnison County Stewardship Coordinator-National Forest Foundation 
Cathie Pagano, Community and Economic Development Director 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Jake Jones called the December 15, 2022 meeting to order at 2:02 PM. 

 

Emily Nutgrass, USFS and Paul Rivera, GOCO introduced themselves.  

MINUTE APPROVAL: Moved to approve by Dave Ochs seconded by John Norton to approve the 
minutes as presented. Passed unanimously. Steve Guerrieri abstained.  

AGENDA APPROVAL: Agenda approved as presented.  

The next meeting will be January 26, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 



 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Brief Updates: 
 
Gunnison Fund Lodging Letter  
 
Joe Lavorini informed the committee that they had a great response. They reached out to all lodges and 
some property managers. Looking forward to bringing on additional lodges. Guests contribute and have a 
say. Put contributions in the hands of those contributing. Donor Adviced Fund is what it is called. It would 
be good to have those contributing to have a say. John Norton stated they are on their way to increase 
the funding. Schappert asked about the advertising. Lavorini responded that they have not got there yet. 
It will be a focus in the new year. Jones stated that there is an opportunity for the visitors to have 
contribute and have a say. Lavorini shared the letter and stated he will send it out. 
 
 
Future Agenda Items: 
 
Gunnison County Stewardship Fund (NFF):  
 
 
Stewardship Messaging Campaign (Mt. Crested Butte): 
 
 
Innovative Finance for National Forests (WCU): 
 
 
Winter Trailhead Restrooms: 
 
Jones asked if anyone had anything else to add to the list. Billick stated that when speaking of winter 
trailheads, he would like to look at them in a bigger context including spring avalanches.  
 
Roman Kolodziej stated that Scott Clarkson from the chamber approached the Town of Mt. Crested Butte 
about a campaign which they would continue the efforts of the Covid critter and work on unmasking those 
and have a more “boots on the ground” approach to responsible use in the valley. Request from Scott 
Clarkson is to get on the January agenda.  
 
Jake Jones asked if there is any opposition to adding that to the agenda. There was no opposition.  
 
Roman Kolodziej asked if there was any discussion regarding stewardship funding support.   
 
Joe Lavorini commented that in the next week or so they are going to send out requests for project 
proposals for the next funding cycle.  
 
Jonathan Houck suggested that the voters passed the LMD. One item called out is recreational 
infrastructure. Houck suggested that the board work with STOR on how to utilize some of that funding, 
How do they use some of that funding to leverage and open new opportunities for more money? Houck 
would like to make sure that is added to a future agenda. Lavorini asked if that would be 2024 budget. 
Houck responded yes.  
 



 3 

Derek Nehrenberg stated that capital construction is part of the ballet passing of 6B. It is going to take 
time for MetRec to figure it out, but at some point, it would be nice for MetRec to give an update to the 
STOR committee on the recreational funding. 
 
Thompson Divide Mineral Withdrawal: 
 
 
There are some concerns of names of specific agencies going on the letter. Jake Jones reminded the 
committee that the letter will have his name on it as chair. What they are trying to accomplish is a 
consensus support of the group. 
 
Matt Reed shared a letter to the committee 
 
Matt Reed presented: 
 
The what and where: 
 

 
 
 
What is an administrative withdrawal: 
 

 
 
 
 
Who is supporting a Mineral Withdrawal for the Thompson Divide? 
 



 4 

 
 
 
How long has the community been seeking protection for Mt. Emmons/Red Lady? 
 
 

 
 
 
 
How can STOR Committee support this effort? 
 

 
 
 
 
Kim Schappert asked what will happen with the comments? Jonathan Houck explained the comment 
period structure. 
 
Jonathan Houck stated that the Thompson divide act is supported by Garfield County, Gunnison County, 
and Pitkin County. The general sense is that the Thompson Divide is a productive water shed and putting 
oil and gas there would be detrimental. Goal is to get the 20-year protection in place and continue to work 



 5 

on the withdrawal. Ian Billick stated that the Town of Crested Butte has been working on this for many 
years. There are a lot of things that need to come together to make this work and this is just one of them.  
 
Ian Billick asked if STOR decides to endorse this if another topic comes up how do we maintain 
continuity. Helpful when someone comes on to the committee, there is something that can be looked at to 
show what the committee has endorsed? Jake Jones responded we are again taking minutes. 
 
Steve Guerrieri asked if the letter is going to fit in the charter of STOR? Kim Schappert responded that it 
is a part of recreation. Cathie Pagano responded numerated items of the charter, #7 states the committee 
will submit unified comments on recreation projects and/or related federal planning processes. 
 
Matt Reed reminded the committee that on the other side of Kebler Pass, where the bulk of this 
withdrawal proposal is, is the state’s largest operating coal mine. This is not all or nothing. This is striking 
a balance. Jonathan Houck stated that this is geographical specific to this time. 
 
Joe Lavorini responded to Ian Billick and Roman Kolodziej request for documentation that describes 
previous STOR conversations – Would a memo suffice? Billick responded that what would be helpful is a 
list for the last 2-3 years that shows the actions that have been taken, letters of support and it included 
opposition and concerns. Cathie Pagano stated that this topic needs to be have some thought put into it 
and think how it could be done efficiently but effectively.  
 
 
Joe Lavorini pointed out that Jake Jones name is the only name on the letter. At the bottom of the letter is 
an explanation of STOR. The committee will vote and they are looking for consensus, not looking to add 
names. Ian Billick moved to approve the support letter from STOR for the proposed Thompson Divide 
Administrative Mineral Withdrawal. Jonathan Houck seconded. Those that abstained are Forest Service, 
CPW, BLM There were no objections. The motion to approve the support letter passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
STOR Committee Stakeholder Assessment Findings: 
 
Joe Lavorini shared a snapshot of the Implantation Strategy & Timeline. Showing what has been 
completed, what is ongoing, and what is upcoming. 
 

 
 



 6 

 
 Lavorini shared information about the Stakeholders Assessments:  
 
Assessment approach: 
 

 
The questions were broken down into 3 different buckets, people, process, and content. 
 
Recommendations by each category: 
 
People: 
 

 
 
Process: 
 
 

 
 
 
Content: 
 



 7 

 

 
Joe Lavorini stated that he will share the complete report.  
 
 
Timeline, Goals, and Discussion Questions: 
 
 

 
 
 
Next Steps:  
 

• Identify new STOR committee priorities (12.15.22) 
• Crosswalk existing and new STOR committee priorities (1.26.23)  
• Finalize STOR committee strategic plan (2.23.23) 

 
STOR Committee Strategic Plan – GOALS 
 
Goal 1 – Ensure the Valley’s tourism sector of the economy is resilient, vibrant, and supports our 
economy. 
 
Goal 2 –Foster a resident and visitor culture that demonstrates respect for our community, culture and 
environmental stewardship. 
 
Goal 3- Support collaboration between federal land agencies, local government, nonprofit, and user 
groups to improve management of recreation and natural resources. 
 
Goal 4- Be productive in management of private and public natural and recreation assets to minimize 
degradation and enhance quality. 
 



 8 

Joe Lavorini asked the committee to look at the goals and think about what strategic outcomes they 
would want. What is missing? Strategic outcome. Actionable, smart goals. 
 
 
BE SMART 
 
Specific (Simple, Sensible, Significant) 
Measurable (Meaningful, Motivating) 
Achievable (Agreed, Attainable) 
Relevant (Reasonable, Realistic, Results-Based) 
Time Bound (Time-Based, Time-Limited, Timely) 
 
 
 
 
STOR Committee Strategic Planning:   
 
Discussion using jam board/ sticky notes: 
 
Lavorini asked the committee to brainstorm and using the sticky notes add ideas of what strategic 
outcomes would align with each goal. 
 
Jake Jones asked what the next steps are. Joe Lavorini responded that members can continue to make 
comments on the jam board. Lavorini will put together old strategic plan, and new strategic plan priorities 
and present at the next meeting.  
 
 
ADJOURN: The December 15, 2022 meeting of the Sustainable Tourism and Outdoor Recreation 
Committee adjourned at 4:02 pm.  

Prepared by Shannon Frias, Community Development, Administrative Assistant III 

 


	GUNNISON SUSTAINABLE TOURISM AND OUTDOOR TOURISM COMMITTEE
	REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
	December 15, 2022
	Committee Members Present:
	Jake Jones, Chair, Crested Butte Land Trust
	Derek Nehrenberg, MetRec
	John Norton, Gunnison Crested Butte Tourism
	Emily Nutgrass, USFS     Scott Borden, WCU
	Jonathan Houck, BOCC     Mallory Logan, City of Gunnison
	Steve Guerrieri, Stockgrowers    Brandon Diamond, CPW
	Others in Audience:
	Morgan Anderson
	Sue Uerling
	Joey Carpenter
	Paul Rivera
	Emily Nutgrass

